
2345 Providence Blvd.

Deltona, FL 32725

City of Deltona

Minutes

City Commission Workshop

5:30 PM 2nd Floor Conference RoomMonday, May 9, 2016

1.  CALL TO ORDER:

Mayor Masiarczyk called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

2.  ROLL CALL – CITY CLERK:

Commissioner Herzberg

Commissioner Honaker

Commissioner Schleicher

Commissioner Smith

Commissioner Soukup

Vice Mayor Nabicht

Mayor Masiarczyk

Present:7 - 

Also present were Keith Norden, Team Volusia President and CEO, Team Volusia, 

Chris Wimsatt, Team Volusia Vice President Business Recruitment and Matt Chestnut, 

Team Volusia Business Development Manager.

3.  PLEDGE TO THE FLAG:

Mayor Masiarczyk lead the Pledge to the Flag.

PUBLIC COMMENTS: – Citizen comments limited to items not on the agenda and 

comments on items listed on the agenda will take place after discussion of each 

item.

Gene Gizzi, 751 Brechner Terrace, Deltona, spoke about the Boys and Girls Club of 

Volusia/Flagler and passed out copies of the Annual Report and invitations to the 19th 

Annual Steak and Steak Gala event to benefit the Boys and Girls Club. He stated the 

Steak and Steak Gala is a fundraiser and tickets are $200.00 per person with 98 cents 

of every dollar going to the Boys and Girls Club; last year the club made almost 

$258,000. He stated the Harris Saxon location serviced 200 members with an average 

daily attendance of 65 kids and is the most diverse club in the two (2) counties; 95% 

have reduced lunch at school and 65% are from single parent non-traditional homes. He 

stated the club spent over $190,000 on operations last year and he thanked the City for 

its contribution.

Commissioner Schleicher spoke about the upcoming Naturalization Workshop Classes 

Page 1City of Deltona Printed on 6/29/2016



May 9, 2016City Commission Workshop Minutes

that will take place on Saturday, June 18, 2016 from 7:30 A.M. - 3:00 P.M. at the 

Deltona Community Center for anyone who wishes to become a naturalized citizen. She 

stated it will be pro-bono.

Commissioner Honaker reminded everyone about Real for Life taking place this 

Saturday, May 14th from noon until midnight and he asked everyone to come out and 

support the event.

Mayor Masiarczyk stated today was the Elected Officials Roundtable and there was little 

to report regarding the discussion on homelessness. He stated there was a handout 

passed out that was a point in time study in Deltona that identified 35 people. He stated 

he questioned who did the study and he was told the Salvation Army did the survey. He 

pointed out that the Salvation Army does not run any programs in Deltona; they used 

volunteers who know nothing about Deltona who went out but admitted they did not 

know where the City boundaries were. He suggested with the Commission's approval 

that in the future the City Manager will make sure there is a City employee or elected 

official included to be able to point out where the City limits are. He stated this is typical 

of what happens to the City when someone from the City does not speak up.

Vice Mayor Nabicht asked if Commissioner Schleicher wanted to speak about the 

Swearing-in Ceremony for the naturalized citizens and Commissioner Schleicher 

responded she would like for the ceremony to take place in the Commission Chambers 

if the Commission agreed it would be good for the City.

4.  BUSINESS:

Team Volusia Economic Development Corporation Commercial Database 

and Review of City Parcels, Chris Bowley, Planning and Development 

Services, (386) 878-8602.

Strategic Goal: Economic Development: Team Volusia Coordination, 

Determine Business Niche, Creation of a Database of Commercial 

Properties and Determine Highest and Best Use of City Parcels for 

Economic Development.

Mr. Bowley gave a brief introduction of Team Volusia stating that at the end of last year 

the City came up with a strategic plan with a list of tasks and specifically part of that plan 

was to focus on economic development. He stated Team Volusia was one of the tasks 

on the list and he thanked Team Volusia for doing an outstanding job. He turned the 

presentation over to Mr. Nordon.

Mr. Nordon introduced the Team Volusia Members and gave a short background on 

each of them. He stated the purpose of today's meeting is to go over and try to reveal 

Deltona's niche explaining that Team Volusia markets the entire County but some of the 

targets and marketing may not be exactly what Deltona needs. He spoke about the 

database of available sites and that the team was asked to review the City owned 

Page 2City of Deltona Printed on 6/29/2016



May 9, 2016City Commission Workshop Minutes

properties for highest and best use and will be recommending some of those uses for 

the City Commission to consider. He turned the presentation over to Mr. Wimsatt.

Mr. Wimsatt talked about Team Volusia as an organization stating he is in charge of 

recruiting businesses from outside of the area mostly and looking at the Deltona 

community there is substantial opportunities. He spoke about who is on the team, site 

selection factors, trends in the marketplace, shovel ready sites and workforce and 

training. He talked about the community being shopped every day, the importance of the 

website, getting a unified message ingrained in the cities and county online and needing 

everyone's help. He stated he had a gentleman who represents several businesses from 

California who knew all the data he needed to know, but he asked to talk about the 

communities and where they are going which he gets asked a lot. He summarized that 

messaging is key, making sure there is a unified vision and displaying that; it really 

matters and he believes this gentleman wants to move forward with a manufacturing 

facility in Volusia County. He went over the site selection process, walked through an 

active project with that client which was a large manufacturing facility that is being 

recruited, the client's concerns and the filter used to score the communities to come up 

with the top communities. He stated as you can see the process is quite extensive and 

competition is stiff.

Mr. Norden went over current targeted industries stating the targets were very broad 

countywide, but there were some for Deltona pointing out that Deltona has done well 

with healthcare which is a great niche while the county is doing well with medical 

devices. He added customer service centers in an office environment are usually larger 

employers with 300-400 people which is a good niche for Deltona unlike medical device 

manufacturing which usually employs 10-15 people. He stated the City does have sites 

for distribution warehouses and with Deltona located right off I -4 that may be something 

for the future. He stated film production is listed, but it is not a target because there is no 

State money, however, Team Volusia has worked with the City to make sure the 

permitting is aligned so there is one (1) permit for the entire county. He stated next what 

he really wanted to do is define Deltona's business niche and he believes the best bang 

for the buck is marketing office professional services as Orlando is a higher cost market 

and Deltona is the next location after Seminole County and with lower cost labor it would 

be good if the City attracted a large office business of 200-300 people and he added 

there are several existing buildings that could fit in with build in. He stated the City's 

success with healthcare is a major deal with Halifax Health, Florida Hospital, colleges 

and universities and that the City was very insightful in bringing healthcare to this market 

with the aging population in the county and it makes sense to continue on with that. He 

stated while the City continues with office and healthcare it will give the City time to 

focus on real estate development adding that the site selection group recommended 

that the City needed product focusing on site readiness including utility extensions, 

zoning flexibility, property ownership unity and workforce attraction.  He stated he wants 

to work with Deltona to cross market with Volusia County as an alternative to Orlando 

through the website, social media and print material.

Mr. Chesnut spoke about real estate and that he has been working with City staff on 

going over City properties, the major sites, database of available sites noting the 25 

Page 3City of Deltona Printed on 6/29/2016



May 9, 2016City Commission Workshop Minutes

sites that are developable. He stated the properties were a mix of public and privately 

owned, some for sale and some not. He touched on zoning, future land use, utilities, 

general site assessment, future uses, permitted and conditional uses and demographics 

looking at drive time as the Central Florida work force are willing to drive to work. He 

gave some general recommendations for the Lakeshore property utilization as a trail 

head, environmental recreation utilizing the trails and Lake Monroe or possibly as a 

research facility. He also spoke about the gateway area on Howland in the area of I -4 

and Hwy. 472 for commercial/retail continuing to work with the movie theater, 

healthcare, medical and retail all along Howland and looking at a City Center 

somewhere along that area. He spoke about the Public Works site sitting along a 

growing commercial corridor next to the Walmart commercial center which will drive 

development onto adjacent properties but this site does need a re-entitlement according 

to Mr. Bowley. He added this site is very marketable and suggested the City look at the 

cost benefit of moving the Public Works Facility to another site and using that site for a 

future commercial land use. He stated the Howland Blvd/Hwy 415 area is prime 

commercial and it would benefit the City to look at moving this facility to another site. He 

spoke about the 122 acre site south of Discovery Elementary that is currently used for 

reclaimed water storage, the middle third being used as an expanded public works 

facility and the northern third being available for development but, the current land use 

designation being residential and zoning of public use and may cause a little conflict and 

would not be a good commercial site. He suggested keeping it public use for something 

in conjunction with the school or a park. He stated it will be important to consider if the 

City is on the right path, that the property owners are important and focusing on quality 

of life issues.

The Commission discussed shovel/pad ready sites, the Public Works Facility being one 

(1) of the City's critical areas once it is moved since all the utilities are there, it is near 

Walmart, work force as an asset, should the City buy property and become a real estate 

agent, the need to align property owners, the number of sites in Deltona that are being 

marketed by Team Volusia, the City targeting office and healthcare, not targeting 

manufacturing when two (2) manufacturing academies have just started up, listing the 

sites, why development hasn't taken off, the City creating a database with help from 

Team Volusia, restaurants not coming without jobs, whether in-house economic 

development would be better than Team Volusia, existing light manufacturing zoning, 

creating a niche, the list of sites including parks and churches, whether the churches 

have expressed interest in selling, have private land owners been contacted, getting the 

database up and running, the blighted/brown field designation on Deltona Blvd., the 

Community Development Act (CRA), the City's permitting process being addressed, 

looking at ways to fund extending sewer lines to support commercial properties, 

relocating Public Works and marketing that property, the need for a bullet list to 

prioritize, the plan for Lakeshore Drive, Votran and the need to work with the 

Transportation Planning Organization (TPO), Volusia County and Team Volusia, the 

need to have a strategic economic development plan and have it out there, the viability 

for the City to invest in a business/industrial park and does the City build a shell or just 

run sewer and gas, working with developers and offering City tax incentives, the 

Commission having to be ready as a body when the opportunity comes, people not 

knowing how to value the land and the need for a seminar on a Saturday for property 

Page 4City of Deltona Printed on 6/29/2016



May 9, 2016City Commission Workshop Minutes

owners and give a general idea on what property is worth, how to market the property 

along the Howland Blvd. corridor and what the Commission would like to see in the that 

area, the cities not wanting to talk about transportation or the idea of the sales tax, the 

need for a frontage road along I-4 and stem roads for access to properties, 

administratively rezoning some of the sites that have been discussed like the Public 

Works facility, relocating the Public Works facility and the aesthetics of the Saxon Blvd 

and the Hwy 472 as you enter into the City being unacceptable.

Larry Kent, 235 River Village Drive, Debary, spoke about building warehouses in 

Clearwater and the need to have sites ready.

City Manager Shang asked to wrap up and get some direction regarding the business 

niche. She stated what she is hearing is the City needs to focus on job creation and then 

work on the retail, work on the database, she believed there was a consensus on 

moving Public Works from its current site and consolidation, look at the Anderson 

property, the feasibility regarding infrastructure and where the City should be targeting to 

encourage economic development. 

Mayor Masiarczyk stated Commissioner Herzberg mentioned the industrial area and if 

the City was going to do something with industrial what is the minimum requirement or 

cheapest way the City could put some roads for access into some of those sites. He 

added maybe some of the owners will buy in to help build the roads. Mr. Bowley 

responded all the City needs is legal access and a road could be stubbed out and then 

the City can stub utilities to it. He stated a few years ago the Dupont Lakes site was 

repositioned and the entitlements were changed for commercial development, the 

commercial sewer plan is 100% done for the Finland Dr./Saxon Blvd. area. City 

Manager Shang stated she thinks that will be a topic for the next workshop when the 

City's priorities will be discussed.

Mayor Masiarczyk stated he read through the email that was sent regarding the 

stormwater credits and he suggested he would like to see it come to the Commission 

one (1) time and not go back and forth. City Manager Shang responded that Mr. Kent 

has provided a draft PowerPoint Presentation and she wanted direction regarding the 

credits for stormwater and mitigation. Mayor Masiarczyk stated he would rather not have 

it go back and forth and that the Commission gets it in its final form from the Deltona 

Business Alliance and staff and then the Commission will make a final decision. City 

Manager Shang asked Mr. Kent if he could finalize it so staff can review it. Mr. Kent 

responded it can be put off but, he would like to get this resolved before the next tax bills 

go out. Mrs. Vose stated by statute the City will need to notify the property appraiser by 

January 31st before the November taxes or will need permission of the property 

appraiser by the end of March and she will confirm the time table. City Manager Shang 

stated the whole idea is to have one (1) meeting before the Commission. Mr. Kent 

asked that he be able to make the presentation and Mayor Masiarczyk responded that 

he believed the Commission had agreed that Mr. Kent would be allowed an amount of 

time to make his presentation for the Deltona Business Alliance. City Manager Shang 

stated it will be an agenda item so there will be discussion.

Page 5City of Deltona Printed on 6/29/2016



May 9, 2016City Commission Workshop Minutes

5.  CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:

City Manager Shang commented that Galaxy Middle School is doing a clothing drive 

and there will be a box tomorrow in the lobby through the end of May; they are 

requesting specific clothing like polo shirts.

Commissioner Soukup asked if the City could be advertising on the Waste Pro trucks.

6.  ADJOURNMENT:

Mayor Masiarczyk adjourned the meeting at 7:30 p.m.

______________________________

Janet Day, Deputy City Clerk

Page 6City of Deltona Printed on 6/29/2016


